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Construction Recruitment, Training, Job Readiness & Retention Services
Request for Proposals (RFP) FAS 2020-019
Q&A
December 16, 2020

Q1: Can organizations create another table in the “Proposed Performance” table(s) (Located in section C, number 5 of the “Proposal Questions” document) and include 2022 proposed performance?
A: For the Proposed Performance table(s), please include the proposed performance for 2021 only, for alignment amongst proposals. Organizations can reflect the proposed 2021 and 2022 cohorts in the “Work plan and Cost” document that is located in Section E. of the “Proposal Questions” under question #1.
 
Q2: Does submitting a Washington State Business License suffice as Proof of legal business name? 
A: Organizations exempt from registering with the Secretary of State shall submit documentation noting that; that would suffice in lieu of submitting proof of legal name of business.

Q3: Do Organizations need to submit the fully loaded rates for staff on both the “organizational chart” and the “Workplan and Cost?”
A: For the organizational chart proposers can list the hourly wages or annual salary for all project staff listed. And for the “Workplan and Cost” document, proposers should provide the fully loaded hourly rate to complete the work. 

Q4: Would support services be appropriate to include in the Workplan and Cost table?
Yes.

Q5: In reference to Page 9 of the RFP, Number 8 “Partner Documentation,” what are acceptable items of partner documentation?
A: The following are acceptable items of partner documentation:
1. Articulation agreements and/or other agreements with schools
And/or
1. joint proposals.
And/or
1. Letter(s)/email(s) of support from partner organization(s) e.g. pre-apprenticeship, apprenticeship programs and/or contractors. The letters/emails of support should show your relationship(s) in the construction industry, or how you plan to build those relationships (it should describe your relationship and how you work together in your relationship in this work). The letters/emails should not be letters of support from funders or just purely letters from organizations describing the work your organization does.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Q6: Are joint proposals required?
A: No.

December 14, 2020

Q1: Does the suggested 14-page limit for the proposal questions include the organization chart, proposed performance tables, and workplan? 
A: The suggested 14-page limit for the proposal questions does not include the organization chart, proposed performance tables, and workplan. Although the organization chart, proposed performance table(s) and workplan, are referenced in the proposal questions, they are seen as attachments, so they are not a part of the 14-page limit. 

Q2: Will resultant contracts be on a reimbursement basis or based on deliverables? 
A: Contracts are traditionally deliverable based but that would be finalized during negotiations.

Q3: Do costs need to be allocated equally between Year 1 and Year 2 in the work plan/budget? 
A: The work plan/budget costs do not need to be allocated equally between Year 1 and Year 2. 

Q4: Will awarded organizations be required to report on staff hours per individual client?
A: The City has not asked consultants to report on staff hours per individual client in the past. There is a “Metrics Reporting” word document embedded on page 7 of the RFP that includes the metrics that will be included in the monthly performance reports; the document also notes that any additional data/reporting item that is found useful will be requested and finalized during negotiations. Invoices will be submitted alongside the monthly performance reports. 
[bookmark: _Hlk58847218]Q5: Per the 7 pages double sided, and 14 pages single sided suggested page limit for the “Proposal Questions” - does that mean emailed proposals can be 14 PDF pages total? 
A: Yes, it means that the proposal responses can be 14 PDF pages total (excluding the organization chart, proposed performance tables, and workplan). The “Proposal Questions” (item number 5 on the checklist on page 8 of the RFP), is the only item from the checklist with a suggested page limit. 

Q6: Can an organization submit be a joint proposal as a subconsultant and submit a separate proposal as a prime consultant? 
A: Yes. 

Q7: Do dates in the Workplan and Cost table (Proposal Questions Section E1) need to be detailed to the exact date or month? 
A: Dates can be detailed to the exact date or month. 

Q8: Can requests for technical assistance be made less than 10 business days prior to the proposal due date? 
A: Technical assistance need to be requested at least 10 business days prior to the proposal due date.  

December 4, 2020

Q1: Can the documentation from partners (Proposal Questions Section C2) include letters from contractors, articulation agreements and/or other agreements with schools?
A: Yes. 

Q2: Would a chart be sufficient for partnership documentation?
A:  No. It should be documentation from partner(s), such as a letter, an email or an articulation agreement.

Q3: How should proposers fill out the Workplan and Cost table (Proposal Questions Section E1)?
A:  Identify deliverables and associated tasks, staff and costs. Here’s an example of an item that may be included:
	Timeline
	Task
	Responsible Staff
	Total Estimated Hours
	Cost

	March 2021
	Enroll 10 clients for childcare services
	Program Manager, Childcare Teacher
	18
	$1,000



November 20, 2020

Q1: Do people served have to live in an economically distressed ZIP code? Or can women and BIPOC individuals live outside of economically distressed ZIP codes?
A: The RFP prioritizes:
· Residents of economically distressed ZIP codes as defined by the City, and 
· Women and BIPOC individuals, regardless of ZIP code.

Q2: How would homeless individuals count toward the economically distressed ZIP code priority population?
A: Economically distressed ZIP codes is based on residence, though it does not have to be a permanent address (such as those in temporary living situations). An example would be to use the ZIP code of the area the individual is located in.

Q3: Does the City have apprenticeship completion data disaggregated by race, gender and trade?
A: The City issued a construction apprenticeship analysis with race and gender completion rates by trade in late 2016: http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/FAS/PurchasingAndContracting/Labor/CAI-Apprenticeship-2017.pdf

In addition, Sound Transit recently issued a retention report that looked at disaggregated data throughout the first three years of construction apprenticeship:



Q4: Can organizations submitting proposals be located outside King County?
A: Yes. For example, if you are an organization located in Snohomish County you can submit a proposal.

Q5: If an organization is submitting for more than one scope of work in the RFP, do they need multiple submittals?
A: They could submit one proposal for multiple scopes, so long as they’re clear what they’re responding to. They must clearly and separately answer proposal questions for all the scopes being applied to.

Q6: Are economically distressed ZIP codes only located within Seattle?
A: No, there are also economically distressed ZIP codes in King County. You can see the City’s list of economically distressed ZIP codes below: http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/FAS/PurchasingAndContracting/Labor/Zip_Codes.pdf

Proposers should note that the City of Seattle has a unique economically distressed ZIP code list, as its target areas slightly differ from other agencies with Priority Hire programs.

Q7: Is the information session PowerPoint available online?
A: Yes, you can access the PowerPoint here: http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/FAS/PurchasingAndContracting/Labor/PH-RFP-info-session-presentation.pdf

Q8: What types of organizations can apply for Scope 3 in the RFP?
A: Any organization can apply for Scope 3. The one exception is for pre-apprenticeship training proposals, for which an organization would need to be a WSATC-recognized pre-apprenticeship.

Q9: Can community organizations that are not pre-apprenticeship programs help prepare individuals for pre-apprenticeship or apprenticeship training?
A: Yes. As noted in question 8 above, any organization can apply for job readiness services under Scope 3. Some examples of job readiness services organizations can propose under Scope 3 include, but is not limited to:
· An organization offering driver’s license services 
· An organization offering digital literacy training

Q10: What constitutes financial support services?
A: See the financial support service guidelines here:

 
Q11: Do individuals served under the RFP have to be pre-apprentices or apprentices?
A: No. Proposals under Scope 1 can include journey workers. And Proposals under Scope 2 exclusively focuses on individuals who are not in construction, with the intention of recruiting individuals into construction.

Q12: Can organizations submitting recruitment proposals under Scope 2 partner with pre-apprenticeship or apprenticeship programs to place people?
A: Yes.

Q13: Do pre-apprenticeship programs have to submit a proposal for recruitment under Scope 2 to find people to train in their Scope 3 proposal?
A: No. If pre-apprenticeship programs are submitting a proposal for pre-apprenticeship training under Scope 3, they can include programmatic recruitment activities under scope 3 as well.

Q14: Does this RFP include manufacturing, or is it construction only?
A: It is only for construction. 

Q15: How long do individuals need to be tracked for retention?
A: Proposers should plan to track retention for the term of their contract. Actual length of retention tracking will be negotiated in the contract.

Q16: Should proposers submit letters of support from funders in addition to partnership documentation?
A: No. Proposers should only include the partnership documentation that shows their relationships in the construction industry, or how they plan to build those relationships.

Q17: Do proposals have to be submitted via portal or email? 
Proposals need to be submitted via email to Julianna.Tesfu@seattle.gov by 11:59 p.m. (PST) December 18, 2020.

Q18: Does the City have a list of contract allowable/unallowable costs?
Yes. You can find them here: 
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1 INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND


BACKGROUND


In 2014, the City of Seattle commissioned Community 


Attributes to analyze data on apprentice demographics, 


performance, and geography. At the City’s request, this 


analysis was updated in 2016 to reflect the most recent data 


available. In 2020, Sound Transit desires an updated analysis 


describing the current characteristics of apprentices across 


King, Pierce, and Snohomish counties.


RESEARCH QUESTIONS


There are three primary research questions:


• What is the average completion time for construction 


apprentices and what is the completion rate? Do these 


metrics vary by race, gender, or place of residence?


• What are the current demographic characteristics of 


construction apprentices in terms of race, gender, or place 


of residence?


• Are any of these metrics different for electrician, carpenter, 


and laborer apprenticeships?


DATA AND METHODS


This analysis is based on Washington State Department of 


Labor and Industries’ Apprenticeship Registration & Tracking 


System (ARTS) database. Analysis was produced for 


apprentices between 2014 and 2018, the latest year of 


complete data.
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TERMS AND CONCEPTS


Races discussed in this report follow standards used by federal 


and state government entities. Races are self-reported by 


apprentices. Namely, the major race categories are:


• White


• Black or African American


• Asian


• American Indian or Native Alaskan


• Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander


• Hispanic—while federal sources define ‘Hispanic’ as an 


ethnicity, not a race, apprentices can self-identify their race as 


Hispanic


• Unknown


People of Color (POC) includes non-white construction workers. 


This definition is consistent with the definition used in past 


construction hiring analysis for the City of Seattle.


A Cohort is all apprentices who began apprenticeship programs in 


the same year, regardless of occupation. 


The Retention Rate for a given year is the share of the apprentice 


cohort that has completed the program or are still active 


apprentices. Year 1 is the first full year after beginning an 


apprenticeship. 


For example, if 100 apprentices enroll in a program in 2010 and 


by 2013 55 apprentices have dropped out of the program, the 


Year 3 Retention Rate is calculated as 


(100 – 55) / 100  = 45%
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2 CURRENT DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS


ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICES BY RACE AND GEOGRAPHY


Active construction apprentices during the 2014-2018 period had notable demographic differences between the three geographies of King 


County, Pierce County, and Snohomish County (Exhibit 1).


Among active apprentices, the ratio of Male to Female apprentices was nearly identical across all three counties. 


King County is the most racially and ethnically diverse followed closely by Pierce County. In Snohomish County, almost three quarters of active 


apprentices are white, 11% higher than the share in King County. 


In King County, 35% of apprentices are people of color compared with 32% in Pierce and 23% in Snohomish. The largest racial group after white 


apprentices was Hispanic apprentices, followed by black or African American apprentices.
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EXHIBIT 1. ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICES BY RACE AND GENDER


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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2 CURRENT DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS


EDUCATIONAL STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION 


APPRENTICES


Exhibit 2 shows educational attainment of active construction 


apprentices in the three-county region. From 2014 to 2018, the 


average share of active apprentices with at least a high school 


education was similar across all three geographies (76%-77%). 


Apprentices in King County are significantly more likely to have a 


college education, 32% compared to 27% in Pierce and 26% in 


Snohomish.
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EXHIBIT 2. EDUCATIONAL STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION 


APPRENTICES


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community 


Attributes Inc., 2020. 


Note: Values are averages and may not sum due to rounding.


Education Total Share


High School Graduate 516    47%


College or Greater 319    29%


GED 164    15%


Some High School (9th-12th) 48      4%


8th grade or less 4        0%


Not Specified 46      4%


Total 1,095 100%







2 CURRENT DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS


ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICES


Exhibit 3 displays the location of construction 


apprentices in cities across King, Pierce, and Snohomish 


Counties. Large concentrations of apprentices live in the 


region’s major cities, especially Seattle, Tacoma, Kent, 


Auburn, Federal Way, and Puyallup.


There are smaller numbers of active apprentices in other 


cities and neighborhoods across the region, with many 


clustered in areas adjacent to the region’s major cities.
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EXHIBIT 3. ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION 


APPRENTICES, 2019


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 


2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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Exhibit 4 displays retention rates for cohorts from 2010 to 2018. For the 2010 apprentice cohort, 88% remained in the program at the 


end of Year 1 (2011). In this cohort, 59% remained by Year 2 and 43% remained by Year 3. Since 2010, retention rates have improved 


as evidenced by the 2016 cohort’s Year 3 retention rate of 51%. 


Since 2010, the year to year cancellation of apprentices has remained relatively stable, with slight increases for Year 2 and Year 3 rates. 


The largest group of apprentices exit the program between Year 1 and Year 2.
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EXHIBIT 4. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATE


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties; 2010-2018


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020.
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Exhibit 5 shows retention rates for construction apprentices by gender. Male and female apprentices experience similar retention rates 


over time. On group does not consistently show higher retention than the other. For example, female apprentices experiences a


noticeably low retention rate in 2011 compared to males, but a higher rate in 2013 and 2014. Both groups experience the largest 


decrease between Year 1 and Year 2. 


EXHIBIT 5. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATE BY GENDER


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties; 2010 - 2018


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020.
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3 RETENTION RATES


CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP STATUS BY 


GENDER


Exhibit 6 shows average retention rates for the past five cohorts 


from 2014 to 2018. Male apprentices drop out of their programs at 


slightly higher rates during the first two years of apprenticeship, but 


by Year 3, the retention rate for both male and female apprentices 


is the same.
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EXHIBIT 6. AVERAGE RETENTION RATE BY GENDER


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties; 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community 


Attributes Inc., 2020. 


89%


66%


53%


87%


64%


53%


0%


25%


50%


75%


100%


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3


Female


Male







3 RETENTION RATES


CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP STATUS BY RACE


Exhibit 7 shows retention rates for white apprentices versus 


apprentices who are people of color in King, Pierce, and 


Snohomish counties. Retention rates were slightly lower for people 


of color than for white apprentices from Year 1 to 3. 
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Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community 


Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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EXHIBIT 8. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATES BY RACE


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Sources: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 


3 RETENTION RATES


RENTENTION RATES BY RACE – THREE COUNTY REGION


Looking more closely at detailed breakouts of retention rates by race reveals several important observations. Exhibit 8 displays retention rates 


over time for apprentices of all races across the three county region on average between 2014 and 2018.


Apprentices of all races had retention rates above 80% in the first year. The highest retention rates were among white apprentices (88%) while 


the lowest were among black or African American apprentices (82%). By Year 2, retention rates for apprentices of different races have diverged 


significantly. White apprentices continue to have the highest retention rate while black or African American apprentices continue to have the 


lowest, but the gap between these groups widens from 6% in Year 1 to 14% in Year 2. 


After white apprentices, Asian and American Indian or Native Alaskan apprentices have the next highest retention rates. 
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3 RETENTION RATES


RENTENTION RATES BY RACE – KING COUNTY


King County’s retention rates across different races follows a similar pattern to the three county region. Notably, the Year 3 gap between white 


apprentice retention rate and black or African American apprentices is larger in King County than in Pierce and Snohomish counties. White 


retention rates are 19% higher than black or African American apprentices in Year 3.
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EXHIBIT 9. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATES BY RACE


King County, 2014-2018 average


Sources: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 


90%


70%


58%


81%


53%


39%


84%


55%


45%


82%


64%


52%


88%


63%


54%


89%


60%


52%


0%


25%


50%


75%


100%


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3


White


Black or African American


Hispanic


Asian


American Indian or Native Alaskan


Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander







3 RETENTION RATES


RENTENTION RATES BY RACE – PIERCE COUNTY


In Pierce County, Asian apprentices had the highest retention rate by Year 3, followed by Hispanic and white apprentices. People of color 


are retained at higher rates relative to white apprentices in Pierce county than in King and Snohomish counties (Exhibit 10)
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EXHIBIT 10. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATES BY RACE


Pierce County, 2014-2018 average


Sources: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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3 RETENTION RATES


RENTENTION RATES BY RACE – SNOHOMISH COUNTY


Snohomish County has both the highest share of white apprentices and the highest retention rate for white apprentices in Year 3 (Exhibit 


11). Retention rates in Snohomish County are also more evenly distributed across all races and ethnicities than in King or Pierce 


counties. 


17


EXHIBIT 11. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP RETENTION RATES BY RACE


Snohomish County, 2014-2018 average


Sources: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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3 RETENTION RATES


CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP COMPLETIONS AND COMPLETION TIMES


This analysis focuses on Laborers, Carpenters, and Electricians. Exhibit 12 displays the average completion times for each occupation 


compared to the expected length of the apprenticeship. On average, apprentices who finished their programs between 2014 and 2018


took over 4 years (52 months) to complete their programs. 


Laborers took, on average, 7.2 months longer than expected to complete their apprenticeships. Electricians took 11.5 months longer, 


and carpenters took 2.5 months longer.
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EXHIBIT 12. CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICESHIP EXPECTED AND ACTUAL COMPLETION TIMES (MONTHS)


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 


Low difference between expected and actual 
completion times.


High difference between expected and actual 
completion times.


Expected Completion 


Time
Actual Completion Time Difference


Laborers 36.0                                43.2                                      7.2             


Carpenters 48.0                                50.5                                      2.5             


Electricians 47.4                                58.9                                      11.5           


Other Construction Apprenticeships 45.4                                52.0                                      6.6             


Construction Apprenticeships 45.3                                52.0                                      6.7             







3 RETENTION RATES


RETENTION RATES BY TRADE AND GENDER


Analyzing cancellation rates by trade and gender helps further describe the demographic differences of construction apprentices in King, 


Pierce, and Snohomish Counties.


As shown in Exhibit 13, laborers and carpenters have a slightly higher retention rate than electricians in Year 1 but fall significantly 


behind in Years 2 and 3. Laborers experience the steepest drop off in apprentices between Year 1 and 2, from 91% retention to 62% 


retention. This is more dramatic than carpenters and electricians but is consistent with overall apprenticeship retention patterns where 


the largest number of apprentices exit after the first year. 


19


EXHIBIT 13. FEMALE CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICE RETENTION RATES BY TRADE


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020.
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3 RETENTION RATES


RETENTION RATES BY TRADE AND GENDER


Like female apprentices, male apprentices in the electrician program have significantly higher retention rates than carpenters and 


laborers. There is a larger difference in retention rates between trades for male apprentices than for female apprentices (Exhibit 14).  
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EXHIBIT 14. MALE CONSTRUCTION APPRENTICE RETENTION RATES BY TRADE


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018 average


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; Community Attributes Inc., 2020.


91%


60%


43%


87%


66%


54%


91%


78%


69%


0%


25%


50%


75%


100%


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3


Male Laborers


Male Carpenters


Male Electricians







3 RETENTION RATES


ACTUAL AND EXPECTED COMPLETION TIME 


(MONTHS) BY GENDER


Comparing actual construction apprenticeship completion times 


with expected completion times by gender provides further detail 


into the differences between male and female construction 


apprentices.


Expected completion times are defined at the apprentice level as 


the full-time equivalent term of the apprenticeship. For example, 


an apprentice in a 4,000-hour program would have an expected 


completion time of roughly two years. If the apprentice took three 


calendar years to complete the 4,000-hour program, the 


difference between actual and expected completion times would 


be one year. The differences between expected and actual 


completion times for apprentices who completed their respective 


programs in a given calendar year are then averaged, resulting in 


the values in Exhibit 15.


From 2014 to 2018, the difference between actual and expected 


completion times for both male and female construction 


apprenticeships has decreased. Male construction apprentices 


had a lower average difference between actual and estimated 


completion times over this period (8.3 months for men compared 


to 14.7 months for women). 
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EXHIBIT 15. DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ACTUAL AND 


EXPECTED COMPLETION TIME (MONTHS) BY GENDER


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, 2014-2018


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; 


Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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3 RETENTION RATES


ACTUAL AND EXPECTED COMPLETION TIME 


(MONTHS) BY RACE


The same metric can be used to compare white apprentices and 


apprentices who identified as people of color (Exhibit 16). 


Since 2014, the difference between actual and expected 


completion times for white people and people of color has trended 


downwards. In 2014, the time overrun for both groups peaked. In 


this year, the difference between the groups was also the largest, 


with people of color on average taking 1.9 months longer to 


complete an apprenticeship.


Over the past four years, people of color have completed their 


apprenticeships at a faster pace than white apprentices.
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EXHIBIT 16. DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ACTUAL AND 


EXPECTED COMPLETION TIME (MONTHS) BY RACE


King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties 2014-2018


Source: Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, 2020; 


Community Attributes Inc., 2020. 
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OUTLINE


1 INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND
• Background
• Research Questions
• Terms and Concepts


2 CURRENT DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS
• Race, Gender, Place of Residence, and Educational 


Attainment


3 RETENTION RATES
• Race, Ethnicity, Gender, and Place of Residence
• Breakouts for Electrician, Carpenter, and Laborer Apprentices


4 MAJOR TAKEAWAYS
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4 MAJOR TAKEAWAYS
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RETENTION RATE


In a typical apprentice cohort, approximately half of apprentices 


cancel their programs before completing. On average between 2010 


and 2018, 87% of apprentices are retained after the first year of 


apprenticeship. By Year 2, 62% remain, and by Year 3, 48% of 


apprentices are still in the program. Year 1 retention rates have held 


steady over this time period, but Year 2 and Year 3 retention rates 


have risen. Year 2 rates increased from 59% in 2010 to 63% in 2018 


while Year 3 rates rose from 42% to 51%. 


GENDER


Male and female apprentices experience a similar retention pattern 


over time. In Year 1 and 2, female apprentices have slightly higher 


retention rates than male apprentices, however, Year 3 rates for both 


groups are 53% on average between 2014 and 2018. 


Female apprentices take more time to finish their program than men 


though the length of apprenticeship has declined for both groups 


since 2010.


TRADE


Laborers, carpenters, and electricians are three of the most in-


demand occupations in King, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties. These 


trades exhibit significant differences in retention rate. By Year 3, 


electricians have the highest retention rate, followed by carpenters, 


then laborers. As with racial and ethnic disparities, these differences 


appear in Year 2 and increase in Year 3.


For male apprentices, the gap in retention rate between electricians 


and laborers in Year 3 is 26%. Female apprentices show the same 


pattern between trades but with a much smaller spread (6%).


Despite having the highest retention rate, electrician apprentices 


have the largest difference between expected and actual completion 


time. On average from 2014 to 2018, electricians took 11.5 more 


months than expected to finish their programs. Over the same period, 


laborers took 7.2 additional months, and carpenters just 2.5 extra 


months.


RACE


There are significant racial and ethnic disparities in retention rate 


across all three counties. Notably, these disparities appear in Year 2 


and Year 3, while Year 1 rates are relatively similar. Black or African 


American apprentices experience the lowest retention rates, 41% in 


Year 3, compared to 48% for Hispanic apprentices (the next lowest) 


and 56% for white apprentices (the highest). These disparities are 


larger in King County than in Pierce and Snohomish counties. 


On average, the time it takes for apprentices of color to complete 


their respective apprenticeship programs has dropped significantly 


since 2014, both in absolute months and in relation to white 


apprentices. 
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City of Seattle  
Priority Hire Support Services 


 
Supportive Services Payments 
Based on individual assessment and availability of funds, supportive services may be awarded to eligible 
Priority Hire participants. Supportive service awards are intended to enable a Priority Hire individual to 
participate in construction programs and activities to secure and retain employment. 
 
A maximum of $700 per year is authorized per participant. The Consultant must establish internal 
controls that result in equitable treatment, maximize the allocations, and ensure coordination with, and 
referral of participants to, other community resources.  
 
The City has the authority to grant exceptions to participants on a case-by-case basis if additional 
supportive services allocation would significantly benefit the individual in job retention, wage 
progression or training completion in order to achieve job retention or wage progression. The City 
cannot approve retroactive requests. 
 
Supportive services associated with job search, work, or training may include: 


1. Assistance with local transportation costs and limited private auto repairs associated with work 
or training; 


2. Assistance with child care and dependent care costs; 
3. Assistance with housing, and food; 
4. Referrals to, and in some cases assistance with, medical and prescription services; 
5. Assistance with uniforms or other appropriate work attire, hygiene and haircuts, eyeglasses, and 


work or training-related material costs; 
6. Assistance with job-related adult basic education and English as a Second Language training; 
7. Assistance with translations; 
8. Assistance with work and training-related licenses, permits and fees; 
9. Assistance with disabilities including learning disabilities. 


 
Supportive services do not allow the following: 


1. Fines and penalties such as traffic violations, late finance charges, and interest payments; 
2. Entertainment including tips; 
3. Contributions or donations; 
4. Vehicle or mortgage payment; 
5. Refundable deposits; 
6. Alcohol or tobacco products; 
7. Pet food; 
8. Excessive or costly food purchases beyond normal dietary needs; 
9. Out-of-state job search or relocation expenses that are paid for by the prospective employer or 


by the employer who has laid off the individual; 
10. Taxes; 
11. Child support payments. 
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City of Seattle, Department of Finance and Administrative Services 
Purchasing & Contracting Services Division 


  Revised 03/31/06 
  


FAS, Purchasing & Contracting Services Division 1 
File:  ccOverhead.doc Revised: 03/31/06 
 


Allowable and Unallowable Overhead Costs 
 


 
Categories of Costs Allowed Indirectly In Overhead Rates 


1. Employee Compensation:  wages and salaries, incentive bonuses, funded deferred 
compensation, funded retirement, pension and savings plans, health and most life insurance 
benefits, compensated personal absence benefits, Normal severance pay allowances. 


2. Lodging, meals and incidental expenses: not directly reimbursed and incurred by the firm’s 
employees on official business.  Costs generally should not exceed the rates provided in the 
Runzheimer “Meal and Lodging Cost Index.”  Related transportation costs should be at the 
lowest customary standard. 


3. Local transportation for company business:  personal vehicles at rates not to exceed federal 
Internal Revenue Service mileage rates and documented by mileage logs.  Costs of company 
owned or leased vehicles. 


4. Utilities. 
5. Depreciation acceptable for Federal income tax purposes. 
6. Trade, business, technical and professional costs. 
7. Direct selling. 


a. Most professional and consultant services. 
8. Most business insurance. 
9. Most legal expenses: If the result is in favor of the firm. 
10. Amortization cost of money, and depreciation amounts: For asset valuations resulting from 


business combinations up to the total which would have been allowed if the combination had not 
taken place; assumes purchase method of accounting. 


11. Certain realized post-retirement benefits. 
12. Training and education costs for the business. 
13. Most employee relocation costs. 
14. Rental and lease costs up to the normal cost of ownership. 
15. Maintenance and repair except depreciable expenses. 
16. Material and supplies adjusted for discounts and credits. 
17. Market planning. 
18. Bid and proposal costs. 
19. Bonding costs. 
20. Most business taxes except federal income and excess profits. 
21. Facilities capital cost of money. 
 


 
Overhead Costs Not Allowed Directly or Indirectly 


1. Charity and contributions. 
2. Office parties. 
3. Entertainment and club memberships. 
4. Most advertising except normal recruiting. 
5. Research, development and engineering for new products. 
6. Federal income or excess profits taxes and accruals. 
7. Officer’s life insurance. 
8. Employee dependent education plans. 
9. Use of vehicles and equipment for personal purposes. 
10. Bad debts. 
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11. Costs related to mischarging on contracts. 
12. Interest and other financial expenses. 
13. Political contributions. 
14. Costs related to improper business practices:  Conflicts of interest and many contract-related or 


other legal defense costs where the result was against the company or settlement was in lieu of 
a result against the company. 


15. Portions of allowances for unfunded pension costs. 
16. Certain advance payments for pension plans. 
17. Goodwill costs: Amortizing, expensing, write-off, write down. 
18. Some costs related to changes in plans such as pension plans. 
19. Expenses directly associated with unallowable costs. 
20. Expenses related to costs already recovered. 
21. Gifts, memorabilia, models, mementos to customers or public. 
22. Alcohol or alcoholic beverages, tobacco, illegal substances. 
23. Memberships in civic and community organizations. 
24. Public relations costs: For enhancing the image of the firm or generally promoting the sale of 


services, e.g. trade shows, special events, and promotional material. 
25. Most contingencies. 
26. Officer/owner/partner salary and bonuses which represent a distribution of profits. 
27. Costs related to pirating the employees of others. 
28. Employee rebates and purchase discounts. 
29. Losses on contracts and net business losses. 
30. Most costs of idle facilities and idle capacity. 
31. Legislative and executive lobbying costs. 
32. Fines and penalties for violations of laws and regulations. 
33. Normal costs of pension plans not funded in the year incurred except for certain ERISA waivers. 
34. Certain post-retirement benefits other than pensions. 
35. Late premium charges on insurance, pension or other plans. 
36. Organization, reorganization and financial structure changes. 
37. Retroactive or backdated accounting adjustments. 
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